
April 20, 2017

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 

Wednesday, April 26, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTES: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting please 
contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to inform us of your 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Additionally, an interpreter will be made available to assist the public in making comments under Agenda 
Item No. 4 and any action items where public input is offered during the meeting if requested at least 48 
hours before the meeting.  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 with your request. (PWD Rules 
and Regulations Section 4.03.1 (c) )  

Adicionalmente, un intérprete estará disponible para ayudar al público a hacer comentarios bajo la 
sección No. 4 en la agenda y cualquier elemento de acción donde se ofrece comentarios al público durante 
la reunión, siempre y cuando se solicite con 48 horas de anticipación de la junta directiva. Por favor de llamar 
Dawn Deans al 661-947-4111 x1003 con su solicitud. (PWD reglas y reglamentos sección 4.03.1 (c) ) 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution of the agenda 
packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
(Government Code Section 54957.5). Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 for public review of 
materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-minutes. 
Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, comments, or cheering.  
Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability of the District to carry out its 
meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and 
Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 

Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or ordinance to take 
action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT    -2- April 20, 2017 

5) Presentations:

5.1) Certificate of Appreciation: Palmdale School District California Association of
Bilingual Educators Teacher of the Year Nancy Alatorre. 

5.2) Certificate of Appreciation: Palmdale School District California Association of 
Bilingual Educators Para-Educator of the Year Daniela Langlotc-Heinze. 

5.3) Certificate of Appreciation: Palmdale School District California Association of 
Bilingual Educators School of Excellence Dos Caminos School. 

5.4) Palmdale Water District Water Treatment Process. (Director Dino/Operations 
Manager Masaya)  

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held April 12, 2017.

6.2) Payment of bills for April 26, 2017.

7) Action Items – Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Status report on Cash Flow Statement and Current Cash Balances as of February,
2017. (Financial Advisor Egan/Finance Committee) 

7.2) Status report on Financial Statements, Revenue, and Expense and Departmental 
Budget Reports for February, 2017. (Finance Manager Williams/Finance 
Committee) 

7.3) Status report on committed contracts issued and water revenue bond projects. 
(Assistant General Manager Knudson/Finance Committee) 

7.4) Consideration and possible action on Outreach activities for 2017. (General 
Manager LaMoreaux/Public Affairs Specialist Gallegos) 

a) Outreach plans for 2017

b) Upcoming events

c) Outreach recommendations from Directors.

7.5) Consideration and possible action on cancelling or rescheduling May 10, 2017 
Regular Board meeting due to lack of a quorum. (General Manager LaMoreaux) 

7.6) Consideration and possible action on the formation of an Ad Hoc Committee for the 
Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association to review joint water banking 
opportunities. (No Budget Impact – Assistant General Manager Knudson) 

7.7) Consideration and possible action on award of contract for the construction of the 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project: Phase 2 Testing 
under Specification No. 1701. ($427,490.00 – Budgeted – Project Manager 
Thompson) 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                      -3-                                      April 20, 2017 
 
 
 7.8) Consideration and possible action on Amendment No. 2 to the Cost Recovery 

Agreement with the United States Forest Service for the Littlerock Reservoir 
Sediment Removal Project. ($100,000.00 – Budgeted – Assistant General 
Manager Knudson)  

 7.9) Consideration and possible action to authorize the formation of an Ad Hoc 
Committee to assist in planning the District’s 100th year anniversary. (President 
Alvarado) 

 7.10) Discussion and possible action to support the development of a free City-wide 
Wi-Fi network for educational purposes. (President Alvarado) 

 7.11) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2017 Budget:  

a) None at this time. 

8) Information Items:   

 8.1) Reports of Directors:   

  a) President’s Report. 

  b) Meetings/General Report. 

c) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair): 

1) AVSWCA 

2) Finance Committee 

 8.2) Report of General Manager.  

 a) April, 2017 written report of activities through March, 2017. 

 8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be held, 
pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with Special Litigation 
Counsel regarding existing litigation to which the District is a party.  The title of such 
litigation is as follows: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 

 
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
DDL/dd 



A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

O
. 5.1



A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

O
. 5.2



A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 N

O
. 5.3



Leslie O. Carter
Water Treatment Plant 2017

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.4



State Water Project
(Calif. Aqueduct)

• Calif.Dept. of Water 
Resources (DWR) 
turnout



Lake Inlet 



Lake Palmdale

• Capacity 2812.5 ft
• 4,250 Acre Feet
• 1,384,868,585 gallons



Littlerock Reservoir

• Capacity 3270 ft.
• 3,500 acre ft. capacity
• 1.1 billion gallons



From Dam to Lake Palmdale

• Raw water travels
through an earthen
channel called Palmdale
Ditch



Lake Palmdale outlet
• All raw water

entering the
LOCWTP comes
from Lake
Palmdale through
this structure



Lake Outlet into 
treatment plant



Headworks and 
Flash Mix



Rapid Mix Pump
• Stream of raw 

water is 
pumped in 
opposite 
direction at high 
pressure to 
create zone of 
turbulence for 
mixing 
chemicals



Chemical Feed Systems

Chemicals are added 
to aid in the formation 
of settleable particles





Flocculation Basins
• The Flocculation 

process mixes 
the water and 
the coagulant 
chemicals to 
gather particles 
together to form 
larger heavier 
floc particles.



Sedimentation
• Purpose – remove 

flocculated particles and 
other impurities from 
water by gravitational 
settling

• 5 rectangular basins are 
extensions of their 
respective flocculation 
basins

• Each basin approx. 
volume – 257,000 gallons



drain valve control ↓

• A look inside a basin
• Super Scrapers
• Plate Settlers



Filter Influent Pipeline

• Water from 
the settled 
water 
channel 
moves to the 
filter influent 
channel 
through a 42-
inch pipeline



Filtration

• Filters provide the 
final step in 
particulate removal

• 12 dual media gravity 
filters

• Media – 36 inches of 
anthracite on top of a 
12” sand layer



Water flows down through the media; 
each filter is 13’ wide by 26.5’ long



Silica Sand and Anthracite Coal 
Media



Surface Wash Valve Actuator

Wash 
Washwater 
Valve

Filter Effluent and Filter-to-waste 
valve actuators

• Filters get backwashed 
and scrubbed clean



Intermediate 
Pump 
Station 
(IPS)



GAC Contactors



8’ of GAC media in each Contactor
over 200,000 lbs.



Granular Activated Carbon F-400 
(GAC)



Contactors get backwashed too
• Contactor-to-waste Valve 

Actuator →
• Contactor Waste Wash 

water Valve Actuator ↓



Clearwell, 6 MG

• Provides contact 
time necessary to 
achieve 
disinfection 
requirements

• Has hydraulic 
baffles



Sediment Bio-Solids



Sodium Hypochlorite, 0.8% solution



SCADA
provides automatic monitoring and control of 

processes



Water Quality Lab



Water Quality monitoring



Leslie O. Carter 
Water Treatment Plant

Thank you



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: April 19, 2017  April 26, 2017 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Bob Egan, Financial Advisor 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 – STATUS REPORT ON CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
AND CURRENT CASH BALANCES AS OF FEBRUARY, 2017. 

Attached is the Investment Funds Report and current cash balance as of February 28, 2017.  The 
reports will be reviewed in detail at the Board meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



February 2017 January 2017

1‐00‐0103‐100 Citizens ‐ Checking 67,863.22             464,926.37          

1‐00‐0103‐200 Citizens ‐ Refund (6,500.85)              ‐ 

1‐00‐0103‐300 Citizens ‐ Merchant 157,504.87           122,383.34          

Bank Total 218,867.24           587,309.71          

1‐00‐0110‐000 300.00                   300.00                  

1‐00‐0115‐000 5,400.00                5,400.00               

224,567.24          593,009.71         

1‐00‐0135‐000 Local Agency Investment Fund Acct. Total 11,844.48            11,844.48           

1‐00‐0120‐000 UBS Money Market Account General (SS 11469)

3,766,784.92        3,396,410.23       

250,000.00           250,000.00          

Accrued interest 4,529.16                9,252.97               

4,021,314.08        3,655,663.20       

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912828SJ0 US Treasury Note 02/28/2017 0.870 1,000,000   ‐  1,000,320.00       

912828C24 US Treasury Note 02/28/2019 1.490 1,000,000   1,005,270.00        ‐ 

2,000,000   1,005,270.00        1,000,320.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

1 Compass Bank 02/07/2017 0.950 ‐  ‐  240,016.80          

2 GE Cap Retail Bank 04/27/2017 1.840 200,000       200,334.00           200,418.00          

3 Discover Bank 05/02/2017 1.730 240,000       240,477.60           240,588.00          

4 Merrick Bank 06/12/2017 1.000 100,000       100,131.00           100,145.00          

5 Level One Bank 06/19/2017 0.650 101,000       101,109.08           101,115.14          

6 GE Cap Retail Bank 06/22/2017 1.780 200,000       200,744.00           200,880.00          

7 Capitol One Bank 08/14/2017 1.200 240,000       240,592.80           240,624.00          

8 Triumph Bank 09/26/2017 0.800 200,000       200,454.00           200,418.00          

9 MB Finl Bank 10/26/2017 0.850 200,000       200,172.00           200,050.00          

10 Bank United Miami 11/21/2017 1.200 240,000       240,808.80           240,650.40          

11 Goldman Sachs Bank NY 01/29/2018 1.350 240,000       240,900.00           240,792.00          

12 Midland States Bank 02/28/2019 1.400 240,000       240,057.60           ‐ 

2,201,000   2,205,780.88        2,205,697.34       

Acct. Total 7,232,364.96      6,861,680.54       

1‐00‐1110‐000 UBS Money Market Account Capital (SS 11475)

426,319.49           238,368.29          

‐  ‐ 
Acct. Total 426,319.49          238,368.29         

1‐00‐0125‐000 UBS Access Account General (SS 11432)

250,000.00           250,000.00          

34,755.70             9,144.85               

Accrued interest 8,753.14                28,162.82            

293,508.84           287,307.67          

CUSIP # Issuer Rate PAR

912828XF2 US Treasury Note 06/15/2018 1.125 1,000,000   1,001,410.00        1,001,600.00       

912828KD1 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 2.610 1,500,000   1,544,115.00        1,545,645.00       

912828P53 US Treasury Note 02/15/2019 0.750 1,000,000   990,860.00           990,230.00          

3,500,000   3,536,385.00        3,537,475.00       

Issuer Rate Face Value

BMW Bank 11/15/2018 1.960 240,000 242,894.40           243,004.80          

American Express 04/29/2019 1.440 240,000 241,329.60           241,480.80          

Synchrony Bank 04/14/2020 1.850 240,000 242,851.20           243,055.20          

JP Morgan Chase Bank 11/18/2020 1.600 240,000 236,124.00           235,660.80          

Bank of Baroda NY 11/23/2020 1.600 77,000 75,798.03             75,647.88            

Comenity Cap Bank 01/19/2021 1.900 163,000 166,582.74           166,266.52          

1,200,000   1,205,579.97        1,205,116.00       

Acct. Total 5,035,473.81      5,029,898.67       

12,706,002.74   12,141,791.98    

1‐00‐1121‐000 UBS Rate Stabilization Fund (SS 24016) ‐ District Restricted

855.70                   570.33                  

UBS RMA Government Portfolio ‐  ‐ 

Accrued interest 753.52 504.98

1,609.22                1,075.31               

Issuer Rate Face Value

Webbank UT US 12/19/2018 1.400 240,000     240,352.80          240,357.60         

Ally Bank UT US 12/24/2018 1.500 240,000     240,760.80          240,784.80         

480,000       481,113.60           481,142.40          

Acct. Total 482,722.82          482,217.71         

13,413,292.80   13,217,019.40    

Increase (Decrease) in Funds 196,273.40         

1‐00‐1130‐000 2013A Bonds ‐ Project Funds (BNY Mellon)

Construction Funds 330,830.32          381,575.92         

GRAND TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Certificates of Deposit

Maturity Date

Total Managed Accounts

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

Certificates of Deposit

Maturity Date

 Market Value 

 Market Value   Market Value 

Certificates of Deposit

Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities

Maturity Date

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

UBS RMA Government Portfolio

US Government Securities

Maturity Date  Market Value 

CASH ON HAND

TOTAL CASH 

INVESTMENTS

UBS RMA Government Portfolio

UBS Bank USA Dep acct

PETTY CASH

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT
 INVESTMENT FUNDS REPORT

February 28, 2017

CASH



4/19/2017

January February March April May June July August September October November December YTD

Total Cash Beginning Balance (BUDGET) 12,888,144           12,591,298           12,125,487           9,811,099             10,852,433           11,101,609           10,602,468           10,269,501           10,564,441           8,273,846             8,294,757             8,535,850            

Total Cash Beginning Balance 12,883,393           13,217,019           13,413,293           10,381,806           11,423,140           11,672,316           11,110,675           10,777,708           11,072,648           8,719,553             8,740,464             8,981,557            

Budgeted Water Receipts 1,607,158              1,463,315              1,532,426              1,684,307              1,746,031              1,895,010              2,343,532              2,248,451              2,409,722              2,187,005              1,948,605              1,734,438              22,800,000          

Water  Receipts 2,124,125             1,733,344             1,532,426              1,684,307              1,746,031              1,895,010              2,343,532              2,248,451              2,409,722              2,187,005              1,948,605              1,734,438              23,586,996          

DWR Refund (Operational Related) ‐ 

Other ‐ 

Total Operating Revenue (BUDGET) ‐ 

Total Operating Revenue (ACTUAL) 2,124,125              1,733,344              1,532,426              1,684,307              1,746,031              1,895,010              2,343,532              2,248,451              2,409,722              2,187,005              1,948,605              1,734,438              23,586,996          

Total Operating Expenses excl GAC (BUDGET) (1,433,015)            (1,410,412)            (1,843,115)            (1,795,526)            (1,815,868)            (1,666,439)            (2,049,698)            (1,869,774)            (2,078,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,794,941)            (21,097,350)         

GAC (BUDGET) ‐  (121,780)                ‐  (220,000)                ‐  ‐  (65,000)                  ‐  (190,000)                ‐  ‐  (190,000)                (786,780)               

Operating Expenses excl GAC (ACTUAL) (1,522,144)            (1,630,937)            (1,843,115)            (1,795,526)            (1,815,868)            (1,666,439)            (2,049,698)            (1,869,774)            (2,078,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,794,941)            (21,407,004)         

GAC (169,477)               ‐  (121,780)                (220,000)                ‐  ‐  (65,000)                  ‐  (190,000)                ‐  ‐  (190,000)                (956,257)               

Prepaid Insurance (paid)/refunded ‐  ‐  (67,198)                  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (35,000)                  (200,000)                ‐  ‐  ‐  (302,198)               

Total Operating Expense (ACTUAL) (1,691,621)            (1,630,937)            (2,032,093)            (2,015,526)            (1,815,868)            (1,666,439)            (2,114,698)            (1,904,774)            (2,468,927)            (1,678,858)            (1,660,776)            (1,984,941)            (22,665,459)         

Non‐Operating Revenue Expenses:

Assessments, net (BUDGET)  671,050                 260,305                 14,650  2,077,790              758,290                 11,325  77,225  130,500                 ‐  ‐  132,500                 2,518,797              6,652,432             

Actual/Projected Assessments, net  669,618                 373,532                 15,376  2,077,790              758,290                 11,325  77,225  130,500                 ‐  ‐  132,500                 2,518,797              6,764,953             

RDA Pass‐through (Successor Agency) 225,000.00           200,000.00           425,000                

Interest 11,110  10,049  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  5,000  71,159 

Market Adjustment 28  (6,681)  (6,653) 

Grant Re‐imbursement 178,000                 178,000                

Capital Improvement Fees 4,035  187,947                 62,500  254,482                

DWR Refund (Capital Related) 50,000  50,000  50,000  50,000  200,000                

Other 4,446  4,446 

Total Non‐Operating Revenues (BUDGET) ‐ 

Total Non‐Operating Revenues (ACTUAL) 689,237                 564,848                 70,376  2,082,790             763,290                 291,325                 260,225                 135,500                 55,000  5,000  137,500                 2,836,297             7,891,387            

Non‐Operating Expenses:

Budgeted Capital Expenditures   (438,494)                (414,207)                (316,000)                (546,000)                (280,041)                (165,000)                (45,000)                  (20,000)                  (45,000)                  (328,000)                (20,000)                  ‐  (2,617,742)           

Actual/Projected Capital Expenditures   (79,601)                  (306,753)               (782,347)                (246,000)                (280,041)                (165,000)                (45,000)                  (20,000)                  (45,000)                  (28,000)                  (20,000)                  ‐  (2,017,742)           

WRB Capital Expenditures ‐  ‐  ‐  (300,000)                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (300,000)                ‐  ‐  (600,000)               

Uncommitted Capital Expenditures   ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

SWP Capitalized (681,198)               (157,881)               (181,818)                (157,881)                (157,881)                (157,881)                (681,194)                (157,881)                (188,154)                (157,881)                (157,880)                (157,879)                (2,995,409)           

Butte County Water Transfer (752,299)                (752,299)                (1,504,599)           

Bond Payments  ‐    Interest (1,060,942)            (1,052,364)            (2,113,307)           

Principal (553,437)                (1,057,016)            (1,610,453)           

Capital leases ‐ Go West (2012 Lease) (17,296)                  ‐  (17,296)                  (34,592)                 

Capital leases ‐ Holman Capital (2017 Lease) (89,477)                  (89,477)                 

Capital leases ‐ Enterprise FM Trust (Vehicles) (2,392)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (2,660)  (31,656)                 

Capital leases ‐ Wells Fargo (Printers) (7,628)  (3,687)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (3,695)  (48,265)                 

Total Non‐Operating Expenses (ACTUAL) (788,115)               (470,981)               (2,602,196)            (710,237)               (444,278)               (1,081,536)            (822,026)               (184,237)               (2,348,890)            (492,237)               (184,236)               (916,534)               (11,045,500)         

Total Cash Ending Balance (BUDGET) 12,591,298           12,125,487           9,811,099             10,852,433           11,101,609           10,602,468           10,269,501           10,564,441           8,273,846             8,294,757             8,535,850             10,205,110          

Total Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 13,217,019           13,413,293           10,381,806           11,423,140           11,672,316           11,110,675           10,777,708           11,072,648           8,719,553             8,740,464             8,981,557             10,650,817          

Budget 10,205,110          

Difference 445,707                

2016 Cash Ending Balance (ACTUAL) 12,534,672           12,719,333           10,275,232           12,340,454           13,316,414           12,675,338           12,028,366           12,724,061           10,784,100           11,041,695           11,034,719           12,888,144          

Indicates actual expenditures/revenues:

Indicates anticipated expenditures/revenues:

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT

2017 Cash Flow Report   (Based on Nov. 22, 2016 Approved Budget)
Budget 2018 

Carryover 

Information



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017  

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 
FROM: Michael Williams, Finance Manager/CFO 

VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM 7.2 – STATUS REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, 
REVENUE, AND EXPENSE AND DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REPORTS FOR 
FEBRUARY, 2017  

Discussion: 

Presented here are the Balance Sheet and Profit/Loss Statement for the period ending February 28, 
2017. Also included are Year-To-Year Comparisons and Month-To-Month Comparisons for both 
revenue and expense. Finally, I have provided individual departmental budget reports for the 
month of February, 2017. 

This is the second month of the District’s Budget Year 2017.  The target percentage is 16.6%. 
Revenues ideally are at or above, and expenditures ideally are below. 

Balance Sheet: 
 Page 1 is our balance sheet on February 28, 2017.
 The significant change is an increase in our investments of approximately $550K.  This is

the result of receiving capital improvement fees and assessment revenue.

Profit/Loss Statement: 
 Page 3 is our profit/loss statement on February 28, 2017.
 Operating revenue is at 14% of budget.
 Cash operating expense is at 15% of budget.
 Department budgets are showing higher than target percentage due to the front loading of

health savings accounts for the year.
 Revenues exceeded expense for the month of February by $76K, but year-to-date expenses

exceeded revenues by $50K.
 Page 6 is showing the distribution of expense between labor and operations. Labor costs

are currently at 57% of total expenses with salaries making up 36% of that.

Year-To-Year Comparison P&L: 
 Page 7 is our comparison of February 2016, to February, 2017.
 Total operating revenue is up $73K, or 5%.
 Operating expenditures are down $86K, or 5.6%.
 Page 7-1 is our comparison of February, 2015 to February, 2017.
 Total operating revenue was up $11K, or 1%.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA:  Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager -2- April 19, 2017 

 Total operating expenses were down $184K, or 11%.
 Page 8 and 8-1 is a graphic presentation of the water consumption comparison for 2016

and 2015 respectively.
o Units billed in acre feet for 2016 comparison were down by 21, or 3%.
o Total revenue per unit sold was up $0.40, or 8%.
o Total revenue per connection is up $2.05, or 4%.
o Units billed per connection is down .36, or 3%.

o Units billed in acre feet for 2015 comparison were down by 164, or 19%.
o Total revenue per unit sold is up $1.04, or 25%.
o Total revenue per connection was down $0.62, or 1%.
o Units billed per connection is down 2.77, or 20%.

Revenue Analysis Year-To-Date: 
 Page 9 is our comparison of revenue, year-to-date.
 Operating revenue through February, 2017 is up $113K, or 4%.
 Retail water revenue from all areas are up by $84K from last year. That’s shown by the

combined green highlighted area.
 Retail water sales, including the drought surcharge but excluding meter fees, is down $4K.
 Total revenue is up $238K.
 Operating revenue is at 14% of budget; last year was at 14% of budget.

Expense Analysis Year-To-Date: 
 Page 11 is our comparison of expense, year-to-date.
 Cash Operating Expenses through February, 2017 are down $480K, or 15%, compared to

2016 due primarily to our GAC purchases in 2016.
 Total Expenses are down $496K, or 9%, for the same reasons.

Departments: 
 Pages 14 through 24 are detailed individual departmental budgets for your review.

Non-Cash Definitions: 

Depreciation:  This is the spreading of the total expense of a capital asset over the expected life 
of that asset. 

OPEB Accrual Expense:  Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) is the recognized annual 
required contribution to the benefit.  The amount is actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASB 45.  The amount represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year. 

Bad Debt:  The uncollectible accounts receivable that has been written off. 

Service Cost Construction:  The value of material, parts & supplies from inventory used to 
construct, repair and maintain our asset infrastructure. 

Capitalized Construction:  The value of our labor force used to construct our asset infrastructure. 

























































P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 20, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matt Knudson, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE:  AGENDA ITEM 7.3 – STATUS REPORT ON COMMITTED 
CONTRACTS ISSUED AND WATER REVENUE BOND PROJECTS 

A report on this item will either be hand-delivered prior to the Board meeting or 
presented at the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.3



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Miss Laura Gallegos, Public Affairs Specialist  

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON OUTREACH ACTIVITIES FOR 2017. (GENERAL MANAGER 
LaMOREAUX/PUBLIC AFFAIRS SPECIALIST GALLEGOS)  

A) OUTREACH PLANS FOR 2017:

 Water Take 1 Award - Event held March 22. The Palmdale Vision Award was
awarded to Jalal-ud-di Baba for his Saving the Saviour video entry.

 Water Walk Series - Go into residential and business areas and hand information/
applications to customers. Series will begin this month.

 Continue to attend local radio station, Café con Leche, where information is given
to a part of the Latino community.

B) UPCOMING EVENTS:

 Water Wise Recognition - We’ll be recognizing the top 20 businesses and 100
residents in our District for their efforts in conserving water during the stringent
drought-period. Currently sifting through the list of customers.

C) OUTREACH RECOMMENDATIONS FROM DIRECTORS:

 Please let me know your ideas for outreach activities.

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Initiative No.’s 2 & 6 – Organizational Excellence/Customer Care & Advocacy  

Budget: 

Items included already in 2017 Budget.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.4



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5  – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON CANCELLING OR RESCHEDULING MAY 10, 2017 REGULAR 
BOARD MEETING DUE TO LACK OF A QUORUM. (GENERAL 
MANAGER LaMOREAUX) 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board either cancel or reschedule the May 10, 2017 Regular 
Board meeting. 

Alternative Options:  

There are no alternative options. 

Impact of Taking No Action:  

The May 10, 2017 Regular Board meeting will be cancelled due to lack of a quorum. 

Background:  

The Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) conducts an annual spring and 
fall conference.  This year the spring conference is scheduled for May 8-12, 2017.  The 
District has a Regular Board Meeting scheduled for May 10, 2017, and with three 
Directors scheduled to attend the ACWA Conference, there will not be a quorum present 
for this meeting. 

The Board can either cancel or reschedule the May 10, 2017 Regular Board Meeting; 
however, due to agenda noticing requirements, staff recommends the meeting be 
cancelled.   

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Strategic Initiative No. 5 – Regional Leadership. 

Budget: 

This item has no budget impact. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.5



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matt Knudson, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
ON THE FORMATION OF AN AD HOC COMMITTEE FOR THE 
ANTELOPE VALLEY STATE WATER CONTRACTORS ASSOCIATION 
TO REVIEW JOINT WATER BANKING OPPORTUNITIES. (NO 
BUDGET IMPACT – ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER KNUDSON)  

At the April 13, 2017 Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association 
meeting, the Commissioners expressed an interest to work together on regional water 
banking projects in addition to the member agencies’ individual water banking projects 
and determined that an Ad Hoc Committee be formed consisting of one Commissioner 
from each of the member agencies, the General Managers, and AVSWCA General 
Manager Knudson.  

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 5 – Regional Leadership. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.6



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: April 18, 2017       April 26, 2017 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS       Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Peter Thompson, Project Manager 
VIA: Mr. James Riley, Engineering/Grant Manager 

Mr. Matthew Knudson, Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7 - CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PALMDALE 
REGIONAL GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AND RECOVERY PROJECT: 
PHASE 2 TESTING UNDER SPECIFICATION NO. 1701 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Board award a contract to Environmental Construction, Inc. from Woodland Hills, 
CA in the not-to-exceed amount of $427,490.00 for the construction of the Palmdale Regional Groundwater 
Recharge and Recovery Project: Phase 2 Testing – Specification No. 1701. 

Financial Impact: 

The approved 2017 Budget includes $300,000.00 for this project under Water Supply. 

The following is an estimate of anticipated expenditures for Specification No. 1701: 

Construction Contract: $ 427,490.00 
Estimated Surveying: $ 4,000.00 
Advertising: $ 4,000.00 

Total Estimated Project Expenses: $ 435,490.00 

Background:  

This project will consist of site grading including: access road (1140’), well pad (100’x100’) and basin 
(120’x120’), construction of 2640’ of temporary 10” water supply line, and the drilling, equipping, and 
development of 3 monitoring wells ranging in depth from 315’ to 550’. The completion of this project (Phase 
2 Testing) is necessary to prove the long-term viability of the ultimate design for the Regional Groundwater 
Recharge and Recovery Project. 

The following is an evaluation of the bid submitted by Environmental Construction, Inc. This evaluation is 
based on the information submitted on the bid forms, including the bid amount, project references, 
contractor’s and subcontractor’s licenses, and insurance. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.7



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT -2- April 19, 2017 

Environmental Construction, Inc., located at 21550 Oxnard Street, Ste. 1050, Woodland Hills, CA 91367, 
holds a current and active Class A – General Engineering Contractor license.  The contractor’s state license 
number is 498624. This license was first issued on September 22, 1986.  The license expiration date is 
January 31, 2019. 

The total bid price in the bid proposal submitted by Environmental Construction, Inc. is $427,490.00.  A bid 
bond in the amount of $42,749.00, or 10 percent of the total bid price, was submitted with the bid proposal. 

The criterion for responsibility pertains to whether the bidder is regularly engaged in this type of work and 
whether they can perform the work satisfactorily as promised. The contractor is required to provide 
performance and payment bonds to protect the District’s interest. 

Environmental Construction, Inc., as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, holds a valid workers 
compensation insurance policy (No. ENWC805932) with Cypress Insurance Company. This policy is 
effective from March 1, 2017 through March 1, 2018. 

The contractor’s past performance record has been utilized to evaluate the general competency of the 
contractor for the performance of the work. To demonstrate the bidder’s capability and experience of having 
completed similar projects successfully, the bid documents require that the contractor submit a list of all 
projects completed by the contractor during the last three years involving work of similar type and 
complexity. The contractor is required to have completed at least five projects of similar type and complexity 
and comparable value.  

The list of projects submitted by Environmental Construction, Inc. satisfies the District’s criteria for 
capability and experience and all references associated with the related projects concur with this assessment.  

It is required that no less than 60 percent of the work be performed by the contractor’s own forces without 
subcontracting. It appears that Environmental Construction, Inc. will perform 69% of the work and meets the 
limitations on the subcontracting work. 

Responsiveness of the bid appertaining to the compliance with the material terms of the bid documents has 
been reviewed.  

Environmental Construction, Inc., as the lowest responsible bidder, has met the criterion of providing the 
lowest bid price of qualified firms at $427,490.00.  The lowest qualified bid price is $49,835.00, or 10.4 
percent lower than the next lowest bid. 

Supporting Documents:  

 Bid Results Summary
 Proposal Package from the Lowest Responsible Bidder

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Initiative No. 1 – Water Resource Reliability 















































P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 20, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matt Knudson, Assistant General Manager 

VIA: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE:  AGENDA ITEM 7.8 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE COST RECOVERY AGREEMENT WITH 
THE UNITED STATES FOREST SERVICE FOR THE LITTLEROCK 
RESERVOIR SEDIMENT REMOVAL PROJECT. ($100,000.00 – 
BUDGETED – ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER KNUDSON) 

A report on this item will either be hand-delivered prior to the Board meeting or 
presented at the meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.8



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.9 – CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
TO AUTHORIZE THE FORMATION OF AN AD HOC COMMITTEE TO 
ASSIST IN PLANNING THE DISTRICT’S 100TH YEAR ANNIVERSARY. 
(PRESIDENT ALVARADO)  

Staff has formed a Committee to plan and coordinate events for the District’s 
100th year anniversary in July, 2018.  An Ad Hoc Committee of the Board can provide 
assistance with this planning. 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

This item is under Strategic Initiative No. 5 – Regional Leadership. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.9



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1













P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: April 19, 2017 April 26, 2017 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS   Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2 – April, 2017 General Manager Report 

The following is the April report to the Board of activities through March, 2017.  It is 
organized to follow the District’s six strategic initiatives adopted in 2016 & 2017 and is intended to 
provide a general update on the month’s activities.  A summary of the initiatives is as follows: 

  Water Resource Reliability 

2015 Urban Water Management Plan, drought response 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery Project 
Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project  
Recycled water allocation and use 

  Organizational Excellence 

Maintain formal management/supervisor training and development program 
Maintain competitive compensation and benefits package 
Employee wellness program; Succession planning 
Board/staff events to develop innovative ideas and awards 

  Systems Efficiency

Water system Master Plan update and related EIR 
Reinvestment in aging infrastructure 
Investment, implementation, and training plan for new technology 
Computerized maintenance management software (CMMS) 

Financial Health and Stability 

Pursue Federal and State funding opportunities 
Sustainable and balanced rate structure 
Maintain adequate reserve levels 
Maintain high level bond rating 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

2 
 

 Regional Leadership 

Create a regional best practices Antelope Valley partnership 
Enhance community partnerships and expand school programs in water education 
Emphasize the importance and long history of the District as a community asset 
Continue to evaluate District internship needs 

 

  Customer Care and Advocacy    

Customer Care accessibility through automation 
Evaluate, develop, and market additional payment options 
Improve customer account management tools 
Enhance customer experience through assessment of infrastructure, processes, and 
policies to maximize the customer care experience 

 

This report also includes charts that show the effects of the District’s efforts in several areas.  
They are now organized within each strategic initiative and include status of the drought, upcoming 
State Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) long-term conservation orders, 20 x 2020 status, 
the District’s total per capita water use trends, 2017 water production and customer use graph, 
mainline leaks, and the water loss trends for both 12 and 24 month running averages. 

 

  Water Resource Reliability 

This initiative includes conservation efforts, water supply projects, and water planning.  

Recent highlights are as follows: 

2015, 2016, and 2017 SWRCB Emergency Drought Orders and Long-Term Water Use 

 On April 7, 2017, Governor Brown officially declared the drought over for all but four (4) 
counties in the State of California.  The SWRCB is expected to continue relaxing its 
requirements.  However, public water agencies must continue monthly reporting.  It is 
also drafting long-term water use regulations.  The draft regulations would develop 
agency water budgets and deadlines for compliance.  They also are anticipated to replace 
the 20 x 2020 per capita reduction goals passed by the legislature in 2009.  The District 
has submitted a comment letter and ACWA has been very active in the process.  A concern 
at this point is whether the requirements and goals will be set by the SWRCB or the 
legislature.  ACWA’s and the District’s preference is the legislature. 
 

The District’s compliance with the 20 x 2020 law is evident from the chart titled 
“PWD 12-Month Running Average Total Per Capita Water Use.”: 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

3 
 

 

 
 

The District’s customers have cut their water use by nearly 44% from the baseline 
number of 231 and met the 2020 Goal in early 2010. The current Total-GPCD is 130. 

Water Supply Information  

 The staff has planned water resources for 2017 based on the current State Water Project 
allocation of 60%.  The allocation was increased to 85% on April 14, 2017.  The 2016-
2017 water year is now a record for Northern California as shown in the following graph. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

4 
 

 The local water supply is much better than in recent years.  As of this date, Littlerock Dam 
is spilling for the first time in years.  The District began transferring water to Palmdale 
Lake on April 3, 2017 for the first time since 2015. 
 

 Water and Energy Resources staff prepared a plan for 2017 that incorporates available 
water with the anticipated water usage.  The following graph shows actual amounts 
through March and monthly projections for both production and consumption, based on 
the prior five years of actual monthly information, for the entire year.  It is anticipated that 
this year’s consumption and production pattern will continue to move back into a more-
normal pattern. 
 

 

 

Other Items 

 The Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) is nearly fully approved.  A meeting 
with Forest Service staff and Supervisor, District staff, Aspen Environmental, and the 
Center for Biological Diversity (CBD) was held in late March to answer questions CBD 
had about the Project.  The meeting was successful as the CBD did not file an objection 
to the Federal NEPA process. 

 
Aspen Environmental has completed working with the Angeles National Forest on 

drafting the Record of Decision.  A final document will be published for the Forest Service 
to adopt the Record of Decision. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

5 
 

 
 The public review of the Draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) EIR for the 

Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project is complete.  The Final 
EIR was certified by the Board on July 13, 2016, and the Notice of Determination was 
filed on July 14, 2016.  The comments from the SWRCB Recycled Water Division on the 
Title 22 Engineering Report are being addressed.  Bids for the construction of monitoring 
wells and a pilot recharge basin are on this agenda for the Board’s consideration and the 
possible award of a contract. 
 

 

     Organizational Excellence 

 This initiative includes efforts to restructure staff duties and activities to more efficiently 
provide service to our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The electronic time keeping software is now being used by staff. 
 

 A policy outlining the preparation of meeting minutes was adopted by the Board at the 
March 8, 2017 meeting. 
 

 The 2016/2017 Strategic Plan Update is posted in the board room posters and brochure 
are now complete.  A Spanish translation is being worked on also.  These boards will be 
placed in the board room when they are completed. 

 
 An interpreter is provided upon request for public comments at regular Board meetings as 

an interim policy being in May, 2016.  The Board adopted this policy at the March 8, 2017 
meeting. 

 
 The Public Affairs Director position was advertised in February and March closing on 

March 31, 2017.  Applicants are being reviewed for further action. 
 

 

   Systems Efficiency 

 This initiative largely focuses on the state of the District’s infrastructure.  Recent highlights 

are as follows: 

 Installation of the long awaited security upgrades for the headquarters and maintenance 
areas is complete.  Similar work at the Leslie O. Carter Water Treatment Plant was 
awarded, a preconstruction meeting was held, and the work will begin soon. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

6 
 

 
 New water main replacement projects will be completed within the funds available in the 

2017 Budget to continue the District’s efforts to maintain the water system.  The effects 
of the District’s past efforts in replacing failing water mains can be seen in the reduced 
number of mainline leaks.  This is illustrated in the chart titled “Mainline Leak History.”  
The total for 2016 was slightly above, 154 vs. 133, the numbers for 2015.  The 2016 
service line leaks remained fairly constant at 89.  While this is a vast improvement from 
2010’s number of 781 mainline leaks, replacement work must continue.  The mainline 
leaks through March, 2017 are 11 and service lines 15. 
 

 

 
 
 

 A replacement project in the area south of Avenue Q near 15th Street East was recently 
completed. 
 

 The 2016 budgeted meter replacement project of approximately 3,300 meters is partially 
completed. 
 

 The effect of both water main and water meter replacement is shown on the chart titled 
“PWD Water Loss History.” 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

7 
 

 
 
 

   Financial Health and Stability 

 Engineering staff has successfully applied for planning grant funding for the Palmdale 
Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project and for the Phase II pipeline for 
the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority.  Application packages for further funding have 
been determined to be complete by the State. 

 The District applied for a $75,000 Grant from the Bureau of Reclamation to assist in 
funding the Cash for Grass Program.   

 Water rate changes of 4.25% for 2017, 2018, and 2019 were approved at a Board meeting 
held November 9, 2016.  The resolution is also unique in that it included criteria that, if 
met, would allow for lesser changes. 

 The Board approved the 2017 Budget at the November 23, 2016 meeting. 
 

 Staff is working with the approved Holman Capital on a technology lease agreement to 
fund $830,000 in projects.  The low interest rate of 2.78% and ability to fund additional 
repair and replacement projects make this a prudent action. 

 
  
 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       April 19, 2017 

 

8 
 

   Regional Leadership 

 This initiative includes efforts to involve the community, be involved in regional activities, 
and be a resource for other agencies in the area.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 Activities of the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority (PRWA) and Antelope Valley State 
Water Contractors Association have continued. 
 

 Additional meetings of the Antelope Valley Watermaster Board (AVWB) were recently 
held with topics including recruiting for the Watermaster Engineer and facilitating the 
Alternate Landowner director election. 
 

 District staff is active in the local chambers and is on the board of the Palmdale Chamber 
and GAVEA. 

 
 Staff is developing a plan and budget for a year-long celebration of the District’s 100th 

Anniversary in July, 2018.  The draft plan and budget are anticipated to be presented to 
the Board for consideration in June. 
 
 

  Customer Care and Advocacy 

 This initiative includes efforts to better serve our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The lobby kiosk is continuing to give customers another choice for making a payment at 
the District office. Financial staff is purchasing a new kiosk and IVR due to the high 
transaction processing costs with the current arrangement. 
 

 The ability to make payments at 7-Eleven and Family Dollar Store is also continuing to 
grow. 

 
 A plan to update and improve the front entrance and lobby was approved by the Facilities 

Committee in March and work has begun. 


	AgendaRegular4-26-17
	Item5.1
	Item5.2
	Item5.3
	Item5.4
	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item7.3
	Item7.4
	Item7.5
	Item7.6
	Item7.7
	Item7.8
	Item7.9
	Item8.1
	Item8.2



